
Minutes of the Town Board Meeting 
Town of Lisbon, Town Hall 

December 9, 2019 
6:30 p.m.  

 
Chairman Osterman called the Town Board meeting to order at 6:30 PM.   
 
Roll Call:  Present: Chairman Osterman, Supervisors Plotecher, Beal, Moonen and Gamiño.  Also present: Dan 
Green, Town Clerk, Gina Gresch, Town Administrator, Planner Dan Lindstrom and Waukesha County Planner 
Sandy Scherer.  
 
Comments from citizens present.   
 
Gary Kunich N88W24710 North Lisbon Road, stated he moved to Lisbon to be closer to his job and to get 
away from the busy areas of crime and traffic and to a more natural environment. He stated people throw there 
beer cans and liquor bottles along the road he lives.  He also expressed concerns about people driving too fast.  
He stated he was against the subdivision and asked the Board for restraint and common sense. He asked if the 
Town was hurting for money that they would need to amend the comprehensive plan.  He also asked if any 
studies were done on the environment, noise, light, traffic and garbage.  Lastly he expressed concerns about 
construction traffic.   
 
Lisa Oddis W220N9359 Town Line Road, stated she was at the Plan Commission meeting where Mr. 
Forester brought very little to the meeting.  At the Plan Commission level no one could remember why this was 
zoned for 5 acre lots and without that knowledge they still approved it.  She stated that Jane Stadler was the only 
Commissioner that had knowledge regarding why.  In 2008 all residents were polled for the 2035 Comprehensive 
Plan change. She explained there needs to be some solid research on what is in the long range plan.  The result 
of that survey, she explained, was to keep this area a rural setting with open, preserved lands.  What happened 
that night did not represent the ideas of the Town of Lisbon’s residents.  The long range plan reflects quality of 
life, rural atmosphere and quality of schools.  In her opinion this land was set aside for preservation of land.  She 
questioned what the point of having a long range plan was if we are just going to change it.  She also explained 
that the owner of the property, Riteway Bus, does not live in the Town of Lisbon.  She thinks these types of 
amendments should not be taken lightly. 
 
Jacqueline Kisting W239N9142 North Road, agreed with what everyone said and also expressed concerns 
about the water table. Ms. Kisting explained that there are drag races going on at night.  She has a 33-foot trailer 
that takes a long time to back in their driveway and no one respects the speed limit to the point where they have 
almost been hit.  She explained they raise chickens, ducks and geese on their property and do not want to get 
complaints from new neighbors about the noise.  Her kids and grandkids also ride dirt bikes and 4-wheelers on 
her 12 acre lot.  She also expressed concerns about the long bus ride to her house as it is.   
 
Dawn Hockerman, N95W23719 Hermitage Drive, asked the Board how much of the Town is zoned A-10.  
She also questioned how much money was given to the Town from the grant for the study done in 2009.  She 
complemented the Board for not increasing the 2020 budget but quested the $100,000 zoning expense.  She 
asked how approving this Comprehensive Plan will improve the Town.   
 
Ms. Hockerman explained that the Bark River runs through this area and sent pictures to the Town Clerk 
regarding some water issues that exist on the property.  She expressed concern about additional flooding if this 
area is built up.  She stated that the Comprehensive Plan was developed by UW Extension, Waukesha County and 
Parks and Planning and that the Waukesha Count growth plan, at the time, would better serve everyone.  She 
continued with concerns about the C-1 zoning and drawing more water from the aquifers in the area.  She 
questioned contaminating the water tables with sceptic systems and had concerns over who was to pay the cost 
if this were to happen.   
 



Town Board Minutes 
Monday, December 9, 2019 
Page 2 of 10 
 

Ms. Hockerman questioned if the Town was going to get anymore parks as there was supposed to be a trail in 
this area.  The Town should look at that plan we have before they start making changes.  She explained that Mr. 
Forester does not own the land and there should be no issues to him to keep it zoned A-10.  The residents in this 
area do not want to become urban and have proved that with 28 people showing up at the last meeting.  She 
questioned why the Town was rushing this through so quickly.  She stated the Plan Commission was biased 
toward this and they need to be the fiduciary for the wants of the town people.  She also expressed concerns for 
traffic and the train.   
 
Susan Mueller, N87W24189 North Lisbon Road, stated she was opposed to the changes the Plan 
Commission approved in November, despite the concerns of the citizens.  She stated she also witnessed drag 
racing which she reported to the Sheriff.  She said the Plan Commission chose a logic that they did not 
understand and engaged in conversations with an old plan commission member.  They did not require a study to 
make the change.  There was no plan review, the applicant just needed to ask.  She stated the Town population 
has tripled in the past 20 years and urged sensible growth which requires planning.  She questioned why citizens 
should compromise to allow a developer to come in.  She stated this opens all parcels zoned A-10 to do the same 
thing when there are plenty of available lots in Lisbon. 
 
Brian Eyre, W220N9359 Town Line Road, stated he is opposed to the rezone and has attended a few 
meetings regarding this issue.  He stated it appears the board is not representing the will of the people of the 
Town with this rezone and with incorporation efforts.  He stated the residents will be watching and if the board 
does not represent their needs they will take action and change the board. 
 
Sara Viloria, N95W23853 County Line Road, questioned how changing the Comprehensive Plan is going to 
benefit the Town residents and why they are looking at the developer’s needs instead of the resident’s needs.  
She expressed concerns about increased traffic and the long bus ride for her children.  She asked if the Town can 
prove to its residents the safety for her kids. 
 
Scott Radke, N95W23787 County Line Road, said he lives right next to the cornfield and agrees with what 
everyone else stated.  He has traffic concerns and questioned what Commissioner Meyer stated at the Plan 
Commission meeting about the expense to do a water table and traffic study test.  He stated expense should not 
be a concern.  He stated the developer should have to pay for these studies. 
 
Cheryl Reagles, W236N9191 Mt Vernon Drive, stated she is opposed to the rezone and has been zoned A-
10 for years.  She does not deny a farmer’s right to sell his land when they can no longer farm, but this is not the 
case.  She questioned if anyone can buy a parcel of land and assume the Town will rezone it to the buyer’s plans.  
She questioned why the Town has a plan if they are going to change it.  She stated there are two other dead 
ends from the Presidential Estates subdivision.  Are these dead ends assumed to have future subdivisions 
attached?  She expressed disappointment in the Plan Commission’s lack of listening to the people and hopes the 
Town Board does what the residents ask. 
 
Eric Schmitt, N88W24240 N. Lisbon Road, said he moved to Lisbon four years ago from Brookfield and is 
opposed to rezoning to a lower density.  He expressed concerns with traffic with six and eight year old boys. 
 
Mica O’Brian, W220N9009 Town Line Road, stated she moved here for the rural area to get away from 
areas of crime and traffic to a space that was her own.  She expressed concern about taking away rural land and 
screwing up the water table.  She reminisced about the wildlife she first saw as a child and that drew her to stay 
in this rural setting.  She also stated concerns regarding an hour long bus ride as well.  She stated it was not fair 
to take land away from future generations. 
 



Town Board Minutes 
Monday, December 9, 2019 
Page 3 of 10 
 

AJ Ludwig, N90W24279 Crooked Bridge Drive, stated he had concerns about more wells in the area.  He 
stated he put in 12 wells over the winter because of the quarries moving and there are still people waiting for 
reimbursement.  He questioned how many people will need to get their well dropped.  He also had concerns 
about traffic and safety along HWY Q and explained the problems are getting worse with Colgate Road being 
closed. 
 
Melissa Fenninger, N91W24201 Crooked Bridge Court, stated she was opposed to the rezoning.  She 
moved to Lisbon 17 years ago because of the aesthetics.  Since then there have been increasing traffic issues, 
especially with HWY Q.  She asked the board, if they do approve this, if they would put in a round-a-bout in this 
area.  She stated adding 60 plus cars on HWY Q will not be harmonious to anyone.  
 
James Leibiger, N88W23693 North Lisbon Road, stated the Town Board was here to do the will of the 
people, not the developer. He opposes the rezone and hopes everyone’s voices were being heard.  He questioned 
if the Town had gone beyond their growth plan for 2019 or 2020.  He has lived in the Town for 30 years and 
traffic has gotten worse down Lisbon Road.  He explained that the developer did not vote the board into office, 
but the people who are here to tell the board what they want.  He stated the Board did not listen to them and let 
the developer do whatever they want.   
 
Joseph Mente, N88W24228 North Lisbon Road, stated he is against the zoning change.  He stated the 
developer should have studies done, not the Town.  He also had concerns about the water shed and well depths 
along with traffic concerns.  He expressed concern about the Town being a target for developers to take 
advantage. 
 
Fred Sanfilippo, N95W24900 Norwauk Road, explained he came from Milwaukee 43 years ago when there 
was nothing around here.  He expressed concern about the accidents on HWY Q.  Chairman Osterman intervened 
and stated there will be a round-a-bout at the intersection of Hillside Road and HWY Q.  Mr. Sanfilippo stated he 
expected growth when he moved here, but just to have the Board satisfy more and more developers.   
 
Phillip Jarman, W236N9252 Monticello Drive, stated he has been in Lisbon for 46 years and is opposed to 
the Comprehensive Plan amendment.  He is glad they allowed the Presidential Estates subdivision back then, but 
it has gone too far now. 
 
Kurt Hockerman, N95W23719 Hermitage Drive, asked for a show of hands for how many people were 
against the Comprehensive Plan amendment.  Most of the audience raised their hands. 
 
Ray Kilzer, N88W23767 North Lisbon Road, stated that the voices from the public hearing are clear, and 
questioned what the Town is going to do about it.   
 
Dawn Hockerman, N95W23719 Hermitage Drive, said she appreciates the Town’s time and effort in 
hearing everyone and staying late.  She said this is a great community to live in and want it to remain a rural 
one.  She also stated she appreciated the Town not pushing this through and asked that they see the bigger 
picture and give this some thought. 
 
1. Consent Agenda.  Items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered in one motion unless a Town 

Board member requests that an item be removed from the Consent Agenda.  
i. November 28, 2019 Town Board minutes. 
ii. 2020 Waukesha County Community Assistance Planner Contract.   
iii. Appointment of Election Inspectors for 2020 & 2021 Term 

 
Motion by Supervisor Beal to approve the Consent Agenda.  Seconded by Supervisor Plotecher. Motion carried, 5-
0. 



Town Board Minutes 
Monday, December 9, 2019 
Page 4 of 10 
 

 
Approval of Bills. 
 
Administrator Gresch reviewed those expenses that were reimbursable upon Supervisor Beal’s request. 
 
Motion by Supervisor Moonen to approve the December 9, 2019 check register as presented.  Seconded by 
Supervisor   Gamiño. Motion carried, 5-0.  
 
Announcements/Correspondence - Listing of upcoming meeting dates & times. 
 
Chairman Osterman reviewed the list of upcoming Town meetings. 
 
Department Reports - Presentation of activity statistics and recently attended meetings. 
 
Town Administrator - Due to the staffing change at Town Hall, all Plan Commission and zoning related 
questions will be directed to the Town Planner, Dan Lindstrom. He will be fielding all Plan Commission questions, 
making Planner's appointments & receiving applications. He can be contacted at 262-408-5563 or 
dlin@vierbicher.com. We have this information on the website, TV, Facebook and in Clerk Dan’s email replies to 
get the word out sooner than later. Planner Lindstrom will also be leaving at the end of the month to start a new 
position.  The Treasurer’s Tax Collection letter and hours have been posted on the website and Facebook page. 
Taxes will be mailed Friday, December 6 and should be posted online the same day. Treasurer Buchman is all set 
up to receipt taxes as the counter (smaller window).  The monthly ACH/Autopay Report is included for your 
review.  The Town Board and Town Staff accomplished quite a bit in 2019 and are thankful for the Town Board’s 
support. We made it through the software conversion during tax time at the end of 2018 beginning of 2019. We 
started the incorporation process and have seen the Town grow. We’ve had some staff turnover in a few 
departments and we continue to improve our processes while still giving great customer service to our residents. 
Staff continues to do great work no matter what comes up. 2020 is going to be especially busy with four 
elections, especially being a presidential election year. Hopefully we’ll have a special election for an incorporation 
referendum too. Happy Holidays everyone! 

Parks Department- Park Director John Greiten said it has been busy in the Parks Department with the ice rink, 
removing ash trees and 35 more marked to take down this winter.  He fixed a lean in the manhole under the ice 
rink.  Staff has been doing weekly garbage cleanup and converting uses from summer to the winter. Director 
Greiten said he attend a recreation conference, meeting seminars, the levy meeting and planner appointments if 
necessary.  He mentioned that he worked on getting the grant in for the Lake Five paving project which he 
should hear back in March to hopefully get 70 to 90% paid back.  This trail will connect 6 subdivision to the Bug 
Line from two communities.   
 
Public Works Department- Public Works Director Joe DeStefano gave his November report which included 
roadside mowing and snowplowing from 5 different snow storms.  They received salt and put in fence posts for 
snow drifted roads.  They repaired potholes as needed and trimmed low hanging branches as needed.  The 
compost site is now closed and should open in April.  The new compost site might not be available in the 
beginning as they are still working on the new location.  They waxed the plow trucks and did underbody paint to 
protect from rust.  Mr. DeStefano attended budget meetings with Waukesha County, Town Board meetings and 
budget meetings and had attended a trial to testify on behalf of the Town for a weight limit ticket.  He also met 
with Rural Mutual Insurance Company. All while still running his own plow route.  Supervisor Moonen 
complemented Mr. DeStefano and his department on doing a great job. 
 
Supervisor’s Reports. - None 
 
Unfinished Business. – None.   

mailto:dlin@vierbicher.com


Town Board Minutes 
Monday, December 9, 2019 
Page 5 of 10 
 

New Business. 
 

Discussion and necessary action on the Agreement between the Town of Lisbon and Rick J. Goecker 
d/b/a The Synectic Group. 
 
Administrator Gresch explained this agreement is for the interim clerk who will be training Natasha.  His pay rate 
is $35.00 per hour which comes close to what the previous clerk was making, except he will be part time.  Mr. 
Goecker was present and stated has been a clerk for over 30 years and is a Master Municipal Clerk from the 
IIMC.  He has done some consulting and filling positions.  He also is on the Plan Commission where he lives.  He 
has never been a Town Clerk but has a lot of experience.  He works as a separate contractor so as to remove 
liability from the Town. 
 
Motion by Supervisor Beal to approve the Agreement between the Town of Lisbon and Rick J. Goecker d/b/a The 
Synectic Group.  Seconded by Supervisor Plotecher. Motion carried, 5-0.  
 
Discussion and necessary action the recommendations from the Plan Commission for the following 
requests:  

 
Ordinance 22-19, Ordinance Amending the 2035 Comprehensive Development Plan for the 
Town of Lisbon, for the request of Jim Forester for the property owned by Riteway Bus LLC, 
for the property located at N95W23759 County Line Road, LSBT 0150.997, and 
recommendation to Waukesha County of the same. 

 
 Chairman Osterman explained this was passed at the Plan Commission but it was contingent that Sandy 

Scherer from Waukesha County was present to answer questions.  Chairman Osterman addressed the 
questions that were brought up during the public hearing portion: 

  
 Someone referenced the cost of studies and questioned why the Town would consider this in their 

decision, more specifically Plan Commission member Mark Meyer’s comments.  The Chairman stated the 
developer may be required to do this, but not until he can move forward with the use. 

 
 The Chairman brought up the comment about the population growth which he reviewed the actual 

populations over the past 20 years.  The increase was around 10%.  Chairman Osterman disagreed that 
this was passed half-heartedly, and insisted that nothing was pushed through.  He stated this is the first 
time the Board is getting a crack at this. The only board member around during the 2009 Comprehensive 
Plan process was the Chairman.  With that said, the Chairman stated he does see a legitimate complaint 
to be made because of the A-10 zoning and the low density of the Comprehensive Plan.  At one time, 
however, these areas were zoned A-2.   

 
 In regards to speaking with an old Plan Commissioner, the Chairman stated that Dan Fischer was an old 

Commissioner with experience to this specifically.   
 
 Chairman Osterman stated he wanted to be upfront and the Comprehensive Plan Amendment would 

follow with a rezone.  He explained that the Town Board does not deal with this often and asked Sandy 
Scherer from Waukesha County to explain the history of this zoning.   

 
  



Town Board Minutes 
Monday, December 9, 2019 
Page 6 of 10 
 

Sandy Scherer explained there was a Comprehensive Plan done in the early 2000s and because of the 
smart growth law, they joined a cooperative effort with other communities in the County along with 
Waukesha County to update their plan.  That is when you did the last Comprehensive Development plan.  
She stated that nothing changed regarding this property between the two Comprehensive Plans, both 
requiring 5 acre density.   Ms. Scherer explained the zoning was A-2 along with a lot of the Town.  Once 
the 2009 Comprehensive Plan was amended, the zoning map was adjusted based on the size and use of 
the property.  That is why the property was zoned from A-2 to A-10.  That was the category that best fit 
its use at the time.   

 
Supervisor Beal questioned where the Bark River was located on this property, and thought it was located 
more to the East.  Chairman Osterman explained that the well issues, traffic studies and stormwater 
calculations all need to be reviewed by Waukesha County.  He stated that the Town has improved their 
stormwater over the years.  He also explained that if the Comprehensive Plan is approved, the property 
owner has the right to ask for a rezone.  At that point, the Board would not be able to deny it.  The 
Chairman continued that at the time, there was a vision that this area was going to extend with the road 
at a dead end.  The Board reviewed the dimensions of the proposed subdivision, a 44 acre parcel with 28 
proposed lots with an overall density of about 1.4 acres per lot.  Chairman Osterman explained that this 
was submitted as a conceptual design and might not be the final project.  He explained that the Plan 
Commission was shocked by the opposition to one acre lot proposal.   

 
 Supervisor Moonen asked that Sandy Scherer speak to the historical zoning and land use on this 

property.  Ms. Scherer explained the land use plan did not change on this property.  The zoning changed 
from A-2 to A-10 when the Town and County decided to change all zoning in the Town to an “as used” 
zoning.  There was no future planning, it was decided to zone all properties as they were being used at 
the time.  Ms. Scherer also agreed that the property owner has the right to come forward and make this 
request.  Supervisor Beal asked what is allowed in the A-10 district.  Chairman Osterman explained it is 
an agricultural zoning with a minimum density of 10 acres per dwelling.  The original Comprehensive Plan 
was adopted in the early 2000s and again in 2009.   

 
 Chairman Osterman addressed the question regarding the future train in this area and stated if there is 

no development there will not be a trail to this area.  Sandy Scherer addressed the question regarding 
the grant money from the joint collaboration in 2009 and stated the grant was to help do the 
Comprehensive Plan.  Chairman Osterman stated the zoning line item in the budget does not have to do 
with the action brought tonight, this is for a future Comprehensive Plan review and the impact on a 
potential incorporation.  He stated that all of the school points are valid, but they should be brought to 
the school board.   

 
 Supervisor Beal stated she received an email from Dan Hein, a resident in Lisbon, who was opposed to 

the Land Use Plan amendment.  Chairman reiterated to the audience that the dead end road in 
Presidential Estates was placed there for the potential to expand the subdivision.   Supervisor Mooned 
reviewed a list of 33 rezones that the Town has granted over the past ten years, 15 of which were 
rezoned from A-10.  He asked what causes the rezones to land at A-3, R-2, R-1, etc.  She explained that 
it depends on what the use of the change is for and what the land use plan allows. Administrator Gresch 
stated that she sent concerns from the residents regarding drag racing in this area to the Police Captain. 

  
 Supervisor Gamiño stated she appreciates the valid concerns of the residents who did their due diligence 

to look at the long range plan.  She also expressed interested in learning the history of zoning changes as 
this used to be zoned for much smaller lots.  She stated if I lived in the area she would have been upset.  
She agreed with the Chairman that it would not make a big impact on the traffic.  She also questioned 
why the developer is not considering larger lots.  Supervisor Moonen stated he sympathizes with the 
citizens and said outside of his kitchen window he sees development across the street.  He knew this 
areas was slated to be developed and it wasn’t a question of if, but when.  He stated he is in favor of 
keeping the Land Use plan as it is.  Supervisor Plotecher stated she can also relate with the changes that 



Town Board Minutes 
Monday, December 9, 2019 
Page 7 of 10 
 

have occurred in her surrounding properties.  She stated the 2035 plan is just a plan and it was amended 
a month after it was approved.  Supervisor Beal said she struggles with this decision because she and the 
Board take this to heart.  She explained that she was at a Sewer District meeting where there was a 
room of people who voiced their opinion and she thinks they should listen to the people.   

 
 Supervisor Gamiño addressed the question regarding more parks coming to the Town and stated the 

Park Committee is working on bringing more parks to the Town.  She also stated there are vacant seats 
on that Committee for those who may be interested. 

 
 Chairman Osterman agreed that there are concerns, but there are also property rights.  He believes that 

when the subdivision was put in it was going to continue.  In the future there will be development at this 
side of Town. He stated that if residents want to keep an empty field zoned A-10, they should buy it 
instead of coming to the Board and attacking them.  He stated it is hard sitting here and getting attacked 
with comments about taking money from developer’s pockets.  The Chairman explained that the board 
members are your neighbors who live along side of you.  He continued that only one person showed up 
for this year’s budget meeting, the time when Town residents can exercise their rights.  He wished that 
more residents would show up for those meeting.  He stated that residents have good Plan Commission 
and Town Board members.  

  
 Motion by Supervisor Gamiño to deny Ordinance 22-19, Ordinance Amending the 2035 Comprehensive 

Development Plan for the Town of Lisbon, for the request of Jim Forester for the property owned by 
Riteway Bus LLC, for the property located at N95W23759 County Line Road, LSBT 0150.997, because the 
Land Use Plan should remain the same for this parcel, and recommendation to Waukesha County of the 
same.  Seconded by Supervisor Beal because of the outcry from residents in the area.  Motion carried, 5-
0.  

 
Ordinance 19-19, An Ordinance amending Chapter 11, Section 27 of the Town Zoning Code 
Related to the B-4 Commercial Special Use Zoning District, recommendation to Waukesha 
County of the same.   
 
Dan, you saw Section 28 at the last meeting.  Section 27 was worked on by staff and redrafted to still 
establish the needs of the plan commission but as an amend, not a repeal.  Marc, what has changed?  
Originally the code granted a different authority to the JPC and we had cleaned up certain standards.  It 
is the JPC authority of the B-4 zoning district.  Too much authority was granted to the JPC.  This change 
is for recommendation authority and not approval authority.  Certain incompatible uses were also 
changed. 
 
Motion by Chairman Osterman   to approve Ordinance 19-19, An Ordinance amending Chapter 11, 
Section 27 of the Town Zoning Code Related to the B-4 Commercial Special Use Zoning District, 
recommendation to Waukesha County of the same.   Seconded by Supervisor Moonen. Motion carried, 5-
0.  
 

Discussion and necessary action on request from David and Kim Meyer for a variance from the Town 
of Lisbon Fire Code, Section 34.20(e), regarding automatic sprinkler systems.   

 
 David Meyer stated he is looking for a variance from Section 34.20(e) of the Fire Code because of the cost of 

installing a sprinkler system.  He stated he hopes the life safety systems bill appease the Fire Marshall.  He 
initially wrote a letter stating he did not want to install a centralized alarm monitoring system but was unsure and 
revised his letter to only request a variance for the sprinkler system.  He continued that he will include extra fire 
extinguishers, ingress and egress lighting and have exits at least 55 feet from where people will be exiting.   



Town Board Minutes 
Monday, December 9, 2019 
Page 8 of 10 
 

He also explained there is a 2 hour firewall between the lien to.  He also took the initiative from the Plan 
Commission and put in a generator in case of bad weather.  Mr. Meyer also stated he did some research into 
other wedding barns and has not come across any that have sprinkler systems.  He also stated that 37% of fires 
start in kitchens and their facility does not have a kitchen.  

 
 Fire Chief Doug Brahm stated this item was passed at the Plan Commission level granting a Conditional Use for 

the use.  He stated that under State code this type of use would require a sprinkler system.  They are requesting 
a variance because of a clause that states existing buildings can apply for a temporary use and the local 
authorities may grant a variance for this type of temporary use.  He continued that there was already an addition 
put on, but was unsure of the type of use they applied for this permit.  If the new addition was built for the use 
they are proposing, it would have needed to been sprinkled.  Mr. Brahm stated he understands the applicant may 
not be able to afford a sprinkler system with their business plan, but requires a monitor company who will call the 
fire department in the case of a fire.  He stated there are high risks to these types of buildings and they need to 
install a compliant alarm system and everything else that was laid out by the Fire Marshall.  He also expressed 
concerns with the temporary use that would need to be renewed annually.  The use cannot be transferable to 
new owners and would need to be conditions for 180 day use.  He continued that the ISO rating has been 
reduced over the years from a 7 to a 4 and does not want to increase this number.  Mr. Brahm explained that 
ISO ratings reflect on resident’s insurance rates.  He stated that one wedding barn probably will not be a factor 
but if the Board starts allowing more of these, it may be an issue down the road.  He mentioned that State 
approved plans have to be approved by the Fire Inspector along with all other items on the list submitted by the 
Fire Marshall. 

 
 Supervisor Beal questioned if a fire were to happen and the Town allowed the variance, if the Town would be 

liable.  The Fire Chief stated the State did not want to be the one to grant it, so it gave the local authority the 
discretion to approve or deny the variance.  Mr. Meyer stated their consultant stated it is the responsibility of the 
business owner.  Supervisor Moonen asked if the points outlined by the Fire Marshall create enough of a safety 
replacement.  The Fire Chief stated that would have to do everything noted by the Mr. Mertens.  Supervisor Beal 
asked how many people the barn would hold in which the applicant stated 150.  Supervisor Gamiño questioned 
why the pulled an agricultural permit to build the addition.  The applicant explained they had planned to start an 
Amish furniture store; however, the State was going to require over $300,000 in road improvements for turn 
lanes.   

 
 The Fire Chief explained that if the Board decides to grant the variance, it should be conditioned that they would 

need to reapply every year.  He also brought up the idea of allowing the use for a few years to possibly getting 
the building sprinkled in the future.  Mr. Meyer stated he cannot see his business being run this way where they 
would have to come back every year.  Chairman Osterman questioned this use being “temporary”.  Planner 
Lindstrom explained that the applicant has been approved for an unspecified conditional use from a land use 
standpoint and the Board has already granted conditions with the use. He stated this item should focus primarily 
on the fire protection discussion.  On another note, he mentioned the Town does reserve the right to annually 
review their conditional use for compliance reasons.  The Fire Chief stated that the State clause it states the 
temporary use is only good for 180 days.  It does not mention 180 days every year.  In this case, the Board is not 
waiving their own code, but the State is allowing the Board to waive their code.   

 
 Mr. Meyer questioned why Casey’s General Market was not required to sprinkle as well as all three golf course 

clubhouses.  The Fire Chief explained that Casey’s was not required to be sprinkled except for their oven hood 
which they have installed.  The golf course clubhouses were built before we adopted the fire code, so they were 
grandfathered in.  Mr. Meyer also questioned the requirement of a conditional exhaust air system.  Chief Brahm 
explained that they need State approved plans and this will be a requirement because there need to be air 
changes in the building. Chairman Osterman stated the items listed by the Fire Marshall should be reviewed at a 
different time, but not at the Board level.   
  

  



Town Board Minutes 
Monday, December 9, 2019 
Page 9 of 10 
 

Administrator Gresch stated she will check with the insurance company to see what the Town’s liability would be 
if they approved the variance.  Supervisor Plotecher stated she was in favor of granting the waiver.  Supervisor 
Moonen stated he would be in favor as well.  Supervisor Gamiño stated she struggles with approving this until the 
Fire Inspector sees State approved plans and once we find out what the liability is for the Town.  The applicant 
explained that once they received the variance they would look spending the money for State approved plans, 
but did not want to spend a lot of money for something that might not get approved.   

 
 Chairman Osterman stated the Board would like to see more information on this and would not be in favor of 

voting yes tonight.  There are questions that need to be answered before moving forward.  Administrator Gresch 
explained that the Board needs to approve this as well as the Fire Inspector and the Building Inspector.  She 
explained that some of these issues could have been resolved if the applicant submitted plans when the Fire 
Chief asked for them.  Ms. Meyer stated there has been a repeat of misinformation and they had attempted to 
reach out to the Fire Marshall on several occasions.  Chairman Osterman stated that everyone needs to get on 
the same page before they bring this forward next month.  The Fire Chief stated he is willing to work with the 
applicant if the Town Board agrees to grant the variance.  They agreed to postpone this item to a January Town 
Board meeting.  

  
Motion by Supervisor Moonen to postpone the request from David and Kim Meyer for a variance from the Town 
of Lisbon Fire Code, Section 34.20(e), regarding automatic sprinkler systems to the January 13, 2020 meeting.  
Seconded by Supervisor Gamiño. Motion carried, 5-0.  
 
Discussion and necessary action to direct the Park Director to purchase a new John Deere 1600 
Turbo Series III 11ft mower from Mid-State Equipment not to exceed $67,800.   
 
Parks Director John Greiten explained that John Deere came in the cheapest.  This price is for a 2019 mower and 
he is looking for approve so we can express an intent to buy it as there are two other parties interested in 
purchasing.  The not to exceed cost was increased a couple hundred dollars for the cost of logos, lights and a 
radio.   
 
Motion by Supervisor Gamiño to direct the Park Director to purchase a new John Deere 1600 Turbo Series III 11ft 
mower from Mid-State Equipment not to exceed $67,800.  Seconded by Supervisor Beal. Motion carried, 5-0.  
 
Discussion and necessary action to direct the Public Works Director to purchase new Case 721G XR 
Wheel Loader from Miller Bradford Risberg at a price not to exceed $203,845. 

 
 Public Works Director Joe DeStefano explained they budgeted $204,000 for this item.  He explained there were 

three quotes that came in that were really close.  He add an extra month of warrantee which he thought made 
sense.  This includes a wide fender kit and a quick connect for a bucket.  Mr. DeStefano stated they may come in 
eve less that the proposed amount but wanted to be on the safe side.  He will be selling their old loader and he is 
confident they will get $60,000 to $90,000 which will go to the general fund.   

 
Motion by Supervisor Moonen to direct the Public Works Director to purchase new Case 721G XR Wheel Loader 
from Miller Bradford Risberg at a price not to exceed $204,000.  Seconded by Chairman Osterman. Motion 
carried, 5-0.  

 
Discussion and necessary action to approve Kunkel Engineering to provide engineering services for 
the 2020 Pavement Resurfacing Program. 
 
Public Works Director Joe DeStefano stated normally they would see this cost in the total project cost, but they 
are pulling this out and having Kunkel do the engineering services for $55,000. 
 
Motion by Chairman Osterman to approve Kunkel Engineering to provide engineering services for the 2020 
Pavement Resurfacing Program not to exceed $55,500.  Seconded by Supervisor Beal. Motion carried, 5-0.  



Town Board Minutes 
Monday, December 9, 2019 
Page 10 of 10 
 

 
Discussion and necessary action on the Proposed 2020 Pavement Resurfacing Program Plan.   
 
Public Works Director Joe DeStefano explained the Board talked about these roads at the budget workshop.  
They have money in the sinking fund for these projects.  He explained they can put these out to bid and if things 
come back close or over budget they can put these back out to bid later.   
 
Motion by Supervisor Plotecher to approve the 2020 Pavement Resurfacing Program Plan.  Seconded by 
Supervisor Moonen. Motion carried, 5-0.  
 
Discussion and necessary action on the recommendations from Plan Commission and Lisbon-Merton 
JPC the request from Neumann Companies, for the Preserve at Harvest Ridge Final Plat and 
recommendation to Waukesha County of the same.   
 
Planner Lindstrom stated the applicant was present for questions.  He explained this is a phased development 
with the first phase encompassing lots 1-26.  He stated from an overall standpoint there are a few small technical 
issues.  The final plat was approved by the Lisbon/Merton Joint Plan Committee on December 5th with another 
phase to follow.  The Town has crafted the Developer’s Agreement to meet the Town’s standards, specifically to 
accommodate the parade of homes lots (8-18).  The road infrastructure needs to be completed and they have 
started the first section of Phase I for the Parade of Homes lots.  Planner Lindstrom explained there is a 
conditional use granted to the property to the northeast to operate a black powder range.  Waukesha County 
recommends that if the Town wants to move forward with this development, it is contingent on a solution to this 
range before the approval of Phase II.  He recommends this being in the motion if there is a motion for approval.  
The planner explained the applicant will need to correct some directions and bearings and there are some smaller 
technical corrections to be made.  This will also be contingent on attorney’s final draft of the developer’s 
agreement being finalized.  There will need to be separate discussions on berming standards in the landscape 
plan.  Anything above a 3 feet grade will need to be approved separately.   
 
Motion by Chairman Osterman to approve the request from Neumann Companies, for the Preserve at Harvest 
Ridge Final Plat subject to the adjacent property’s Conditional Use for a gun range be reviewed by the Town prior 
to beginning Phase II of the development, that the Town Planner, Town Engineer and Waukesha County’s 
technical plat revisions be made and reviewed by the same, and recommendation to Waukesha County of the 
same.  Seconded by Supervisor Gamiño. Motion carried, 5-0.  
 
Adjournment. 
 
Motion by Supervisor Gamiño   to adjourn the Monday, December 9, 2019 Town Board of Supervisors meeting at 
9:45 PM.  Seconded by Supervisor Beal. Motion carried, 5-0. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Dan Green, WCMC/CMC 
Town Clerk 
 
 


	Town of Lisbon, Town Hall
	Announcements/Correspondence - Listing of upcoming meeting dates & times.
	Discussion and necessary action on the Agreement between the Town of Lisbon and Rick J. Goecker d/b/a The Synectic Group.
	Discussion and necessary action the recommendations from the Plan Commission for the following requests:
	Ordinance 22-19, Ordinance Amending the 2035 Comprehensive Development Plan for the Town of Lisbon, for the request of Jim Forester for the property owned by Riteway Bus LLC, for the property located at N95W23759 County Line Road, LSBT 0150.997, and r...
	Ordinance 19-19, An Ordinance amending Chapter 11, Section 27 of the Town Zoning Code Related to the B-4 Commercial Special Use Zoning District, recommendation to Waukesha County of the same.
	Motion by Chairman Osterman   to approve Ordinance 19-19, An Ordinance amending Chapter 11, Section 27 of the Town Zoning Code Related to the B-4 Commercial Special Use Zoning District, recommendation to Waukesha County of the same.   Seconded by Supe...
	Discussion and necessary action on request from David and Kim Meyer for a variance from the Town of Lisbon Fire Code, Section 34.20(e), regarding automatic sprinkler systems.
	Discussion and necessary action to direct the Park Director to purchase a new John Deere 1600 Turbo Series III 11ft mower from Mid-State Equipment not to exceed $67,800.
	Discussion and necessary action to direct the Public Works Director to purchase new Case 721G XR Wheel Loader from Miller Bradford Risberg at a price not to exceed $203,845.
	Discussion and necessary action to approve Kunkel Engineering to provide engineering services for the 2020 Pavement Resurfacing Program.
	Discussion and necessary action on the Proposed 2020 Pavement Resurfacing Program Plan.
	Discussion and necessary action on the recommendations from Plan Commission and Lisbon-Merton JPC the request from Neumann Companies, for the Preserve at Harvest Ridge Final Plat and recommendation to Waukesha County of the same.
	Respectfully submitted,
	Dan Green, WCMC/CMC
	Town Clerk


